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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

NHS SYSTEMS, INC., 
a Pennsylvania corporation, also d/b/a 
National Healthcare Solutions and 
National Health Net Online, and 

PLUS HEALTH SAVINGS, INC., 
a Pennsylvania corporation, and 

PHYSICIANS HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC., 
a Delaware corporation, also d/b/a 
American Health Benefits On Line, 
and 

HARRY F. BELL, JR., 
individually and as an officer or principal 
ofNHS Systems, Inc., Plus Health Savings, 
Inc., and Physicians Health Systems, Inc., 
and 

PHYSICIAN HEALTH SERVICE, LLC, 
a Missouri limited liability company, also 
d/b/a American Health Benefits On Line, 
and 

HEALTH MANAGEMENT, LLC, 
a Missouri limited liability company, and 

DONNA NEWMAN, 
individually and as an officer or principal 
of Physician Health Service, LLC, and 
Health Management, LLC, and 

6676529 CANADA, INC., 
a Canadian corporation, and 

Civ. Action No. 08-cv-2215 

AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR 
INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER 
EQIDTABLE RELIEF 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

Online, and 

PLUS HEALTH SAVINGS, INC., 
a Pennsylvania corporation, and 

PHYSICIANS HEALTH SYSTEMS, INC., 
a Delaware corporation, also d/b/a 
American Health Benefits On Line, 
and 

HARRY F. BELL, JR., 
individually and as an officer or principal 
ofNHS Systems, Inc., Plus Health Savings, 
Inc., and Physicians Health Systems, Inc., 
and 

PHYSICIAN HEALTH SERVICE, LLC, 
a Missouri limited liability company, also 
d/b/a American Health Benefits On Line, 
and 

HEALTH MANAGEMENT, LLC, 
a Missouri limited liability company, and 

DONNA NEWMAN, 
individually and as an officer or principal 
of Physician Health Service, LLC, and 
Health Management, LLC, and 

6676529 CANADA, INC., 
a9.61 534.L.7LC, c o r p o r a t i o n 0 8 6  T c  3 . 6  0  T d 9 . 5 5 n d  
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NICOLE BERTRAND, 
individually and as an officer or principal of 
6676529 Canada, Inc., and 

BARRY KIRSTEIN, 
individually, and 

"DANNIE BOlE," 
a person whose true identity is unknown, 
individually, and 

PHS ENTERPRISES, INC., 
a Nevada corporation, and 

FIRST STEP MANAGEMENT, INC., 
a St. Lucia company, and 

GOLD DOT, INC., 
a St. Lucia company, and 

LINKE IN PAUL, 
individually and as an officer or principal of 
First Step Management, Inc., and Gold Dot, 
Inc., and 

TASHA IN PAUL, 
individually and as an officer or principal of 
Gold Dot, Inc., and 

NEVADA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, INC., 
a Nevada corporation, and 

INTERFACE MANAGEMENT, INC., 
a Florida corporation, also d/b/a Galaxy 
Member Benefits, and 

BEGINNING AGAIN, INC., 
a Florida corporation, and 

JOHN E. BARTHOLOMEW, 
individually and as an officer or principal of 
Interface Management, Inc., and Beginning 
Again, Inc., 

Defendants. 

NICOLE BERTRAND, 
individually and as an officer or principal of 
6676529 Canada, Inc., and 

BARRY KIRSTEIN, 
individually, and 

"DANNIE BOlE," 
a person whose true identity is unknown, 
individually, and 

PHS ENTERPRISES, INC., 
a Nevada corporation, and 

FIRST STEP MANAGEMENT, INC., 
a St. Lucia company, and 

GOLD DOT, INC., 
a St. Lucia company, and 

LINKE IN PAUL, 
individually and as an officer or principal of 
First Step Management, Inc., and Gold Dot, 
Inc., and 

TASHA IN PAUL, 
individually and as an officer or principal of 
Gold Dot, Inc., and 

NEVADA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, INC., 
a Nevada corporation, and 

INTERFACE MANAGEMENT, INC., 
a Florida corporation, also d/b/a Galaxy 
Member Benefits, and 

BEGINNING AGAIN, INC., 
a Florida corporation, and 

JOHN E. BARTHOLOMEW, 
individually and as an officer or principal of 
Interface Management, Inc., and Beginning 
Again, Inc., 

Defendants. 
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Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission ("FTC" or "Commission") for its Amended Complaint 

alleges: 

1. The FTC brings this action under Sections 13(b) and 19 ofthe Federal Trade Commission 

Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, and the Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud 

and Abuse Prevention Act ("Telemarketing Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 6101 - 6108, to obtain 

temporary, preliminary, and permanent injunctive relief, rescission or reformation of 

contracts, restitution, disgorgement of ill-gotten monies, and other equitable relief for 

Defendants' acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), 

and in violation of the FTC's Telemarketing Sales Rule ("TSR"), 16 C.F.R. Part 310. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuantto 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), and 1345, 

and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), 57b, 6102(c), and 6105(b). 

3. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 (b) and (c), and 15 U.S.C. § 53(b). 

PLAINTIFF 

4. Plaintiff FTC is an independent agency of the United States Gov-.3 11.3 0 298m269 Tc 5.3929j
0.034dl. §§ 
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5. The FTC is authorized to initiate federal district court proceedings, by its own attorneys, to 

enjoin violations of the FTC Act and the TSR, and to secure such equitable relief as may be 

appropriate in each case, including restitution and disgorgement. 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b), 57b, 

6102(c), and 6105(b). 

DEFENDANTS 

6. Defendant NHS Systems, Inc. ("NHS Systems"), is a PelIDsylvania corporation with its 

principal place of business at 555 2nd Avenue, Suite H-I00, Collegeville, Pennsylvania 

19426. In connection with the 
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transacted business in this 
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20. Defendant First Step Management, Inc. ("First Step"), is a St. Lucia company with its 

registered address at 6 Brazil Street, Castries, St. Lucia. In connection with the matters 

alleged herein, First Step has transacted business in this District. 

21. Defendant Gold Dot, Inc. ("Gold Dot"), is a St. Lucia company with its registered address at 

6 Brazil Street, Castries, St. Lucia. In connection with the matters alleged herein, Gold Dot 

has transacted business in this District. 

22. Defendant Linke In Paul is a director of First Step and Gold Dot. On information and belief, 

he is a resident of Nevada. At all times material to this Amended Complaint, acting alone or 

in concert with others, he has formulated, directed, controlled, or participated in the acts and 

practices of the NHSIPHS Corporate Defendants (as defined below), including the acts and 

practices set forth in this Amended Complaint. 

23. Defendant Tasha In Paul is a director of Gold Dot. She is a resident of Nevada. At all times 

material to this Amended Complaint, acting alone or in concert with others, she has 

formulated, directed, controlled, or participated in the acts and practices of the NHSIPHS 

Corporate Defendants (as defined below), including the acts and practices set forth in this 

Amended Complaint. 

24. Defendant Nevada Business Solutions, Inc. ("NBS"), is a Nevada corporation with its 

registered address at 3838 Raymert Drive, Suite 3, Las Vegas, NY 89121. In connection 

with the matters alleged herein, NBS has transacted business in this District. 

25. Collectively, Defendants NHS Systems, Plus Health Savces Td
(alon.206 Tc -33.422 eF50051 Tc 1ded )Tj
0.0185 Tc 4.311 0 ys
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(b )Tj
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26. Collectively, the Bell Defendants (NHS Systems, Plus Health Savings, and Physicians 

Health Systems), the Newman Defendants (NHS Systems, Physician Health Service, and 

Health Management), and Defendants 6676529 Canada, PHS Enterprises, First Step, Gold 

Dot, and NBS are hereafter referenced as the "NHS/PHS Corporate Defendants." 

27. Defendant Interface Management, Inc. ("Interface"), is a Florida corporation with its 

principal place of business at 1426 Gulf to Bay, Suite E, Clearwater, FL 33755. In 

connection with the matters alleged herein, Interface has transacted business in this District. 

Interface also has done business using the name Galaxy Member Benefits. 

28. Defendant Beginning Again, Inc. ("Beginning Again"), is a Florida corporation with its 

principal place of business at 1426 Gulfto Bay, Suite E, Clearwater, FL 33755. In 

connection with the matters alleged herein, Beginning Again has transacted business in this 

District. 

29. Defendant John E. Bartholomew is the President of Interface and Beginning Again. He is a 

resident of Florida. In connection with the matters alleged herein, he has transacted business 

in this District. At times material to this Amended Complaint, acting alone or in concert 

with others, he has participated in the acts and practices of the NHS/PHS Corporate 

Defendants, including the acts and practices set forth in this Amended Complaint. At all 

times material to this Amended Complaint, acting alone or in concert with others, he has 

formulated, directed, controlled, or participated in the acts and practices of Interface and 

Beginning Again, including the acts and practices set forth in this Amended Complaint. 

30. Collectively, Defendants Bartholomew, Interface, and Beginning Again are hereafter 

referenced 
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COMMERCE 

31. At all times material to this Amended Complaint, the NHSIPHS Defendants and the Galaxy 

Defendants (collectively "Defendants") have maintained a substantial course of trade in the 

offering for sale and sale of goods or services via the telephone, in or affecting commerce, 
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credit card information. These deposits typically have 
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in instances where no recorded authorization was available or when the recorded 

authorization was in a voice that was not the consumer's. 

42. In numerous instances, the NHSIPHS Corporate Defendants have charged consumers who 

have not authorized charges against their accolmts or who have been deceived into 

authorizing charges against their accounts. Typically, these charges have been in the 
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COMMON ENTERPRISES 

47. The NHSIPHS Corporate Defendants have operated together as a common enterprise while 

engaging in the deceptive acts and practices alleged herein. The NHSIPHS Corporate 

Defendants have conducted the business practices described herein through an interrelated 

network of companies that have common ownership, officers, managers, and business 

functions. Individual Defendants Bertrand, Kirstein, "Damue Boie," Linke In Paul, Tasha 

In Paul, Bell, and Newman have formulated, directed, and/or controlled, or had authority to 

control, or participated in the acts and practices of the corporate defendants that comprise 

the NHSIPHS common enterprise. 

48. The Galaxy Corporate Defendants have operated together as a common enterprise while 

engaging in the deceptive acts and practices alleged herein. The Galaxy Corporate 

Defendants have conducted the business practices described herein through an interrelated 

network of companies that have common ownership, officers, managers, and business 

functions. Individual Defendant Bartholomew has formulated, directed, and/or controlled, 

or had authority to control, or participated in the acts and practices of the corporate 

Defendants that comprise the Galaxy common enterprise. 

VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT 

49. Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), prohibits "unfair or deceptive acts or 

practices in or affecting commerce." 

50. Under Section 5(n) of the FTC Act, an act or practice is unfair if it causes or is likely to 

cause substantial injury to consumers that is not reasonably avoidable by consumers and is 

not outweighed by countervailing benefits to consumers or competition. 15 U.S.C. § 45(n). 

12 
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Count I 
Deceptive Claims of Government Affiliation 

51. In numerous instances in connection with the marketing of purported discount health care 

and benefits programs, Defendants have represented, directly or indirectly, expressly or by 

implication, that they represent or are affiliated with United States government agencies. 

52. In tmth and in fact, Defendants do not represent and are not affiliated with United States 

government agencies. 

530 Therefore, Defendants' representations as set forth in Paragraph 51 of this Amended 

Complaint are false0 Td
(not )Tj
0itj
-0.0025 S11.5 11.5 0 1sUs a g e n c i e s .  

a)0233 Tc -12.5203 111473 668.88 47 Td
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Count III 
Deceptive Claims Regarding Cost 

57. In numerous instances in connection 
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62. The NHS/PHS Defendants' failure to disclose or to disclose adequately the material 

information described in Paragraph 61 above, in light of the representation described in 

Paragraph 60 above, constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 5( a) of the 

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

Count V 
Unfair Unauthorized Charges 

63. In numerous instances, Defendants have debited consumers' accounts without authorization. 

64. Defendants' practice of debiting consumers' accounts without authorization causes or is 

likely to cause substantial injury to consumers which is not reasonably avoidable by 

consumers themselves and not outweighed by benefits to consumers or competition. 

65. Therefore, Defendants' practice as set forth in Paragraphs 63-64 of this Amended Complaint 

constitutes an unfair act or practice in violation of Section 5(a) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 45(a). 

VIOLATIONS OF THE TELEMARKETING SALES RULE 

66. Congress directed the FTC to prescribe TIlles prohibiting abusive and deceptive 

telemarketing acts or 
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68. Under the TSR, "Free-to-pay conversion means, in an offer or agreement to sell or provide 

any goods or services, a provision under which a customer receives a product or service for 

free for an initial period and will incur an obligation to pay for the product or service ifhe or 

she does not take affirmative action to cancel before the end of that period." 16 C.F.R. 

§ 310.2(0). 

69. Under the TSR, "Preacquired account infonnation means any infonnation that enables a 

seller or telemarketer to cause a charge to be placed against a customer's or donor's account 

without obtaining the account number directly from the customer or donor during the 

telemarketing transaction pursuant to which the account will be charged." 16 C.F.R. 

§ 310.2(w). 

70. The TSR prohibits sellers and telemarketers from failing to disclose truthfully in a clear and 

conspicuous manner, before a customer pays for goods or services, among other things, all 

material restrictions, limitations, or conditions to purchase, receive, or use the goods or 

services that are the subject of the sales offer. 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(l)(ii). 

71. The TSR prohibits sellers and telemarketers from misrepresenting, directly or by 

implication, in the sale of goods or services any of the following material infonnation: 

a. The total costs to purchase, receive, or use, and the quantity of, any goods 

or services that are the subject ofa sales offer. 16 C.F.R. § 31O.3(a)(2)(i); 

b. Any material aspect of the perfonnance, efficacy, nature, or central 

characteristics of goods or services that are the subject of a sales offer. 

16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(2)(iii); 

16 

68. Under the TSR, "Free-to-pay conversion means, in an offer or agreement to sell or provide 

any goods or services, a provision under which a customer receives a product or service for 
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she does not take affirmative action to cancel before the the C.F.R. 1 6  

C.F.R. § 

310.3(4j
0.0043(i); )Tj
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c. A seller's or telemarketer's affiliation with, or endorsement or 

sponsorship by, any person or government entity. 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(2)(vii). 

72. The TSR prohibits any seller or telemarketer from causing billing information to be 

submitted for payment, or collecting or attempting to collect payment for goods or services, 

directly or indirectly, without the customer's express verifiable authorization, except when 

the method of payment used is a credit card subject to the protections of the Truth in 

Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1601 et seq., and Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. § 226, or a debit card 

subject to the protections of the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1693 et seq., and 

Regulation E, 12 C.F.R. § 205. When an audio recording of the customer's express oral 

authorization is used to satisfY this requirement, the TSR requires that the recording must 

evidence clearly the customer's authorization of payment for the goods or services that are 

the subject of the telemarketing transaction and the customer's receipt of all of the following 

information, among other information: 

a. the number of debits, charges, or payments (if more than one); 

b. the date(s) the debit(s), charge(s), or payment(s) will be submitted for 

payment; 

c. the amolillt(s) of the debit(s), charge(s), or payment(s); and 

d. a telephone number for customer inquiry that is answered during normal 

business hours. 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(3)(ii). 

73. The TSR prohibits a person from providing "substantial assistance or support" to any seller 

or telemarketer when that person "knows or consciously avoids lmowing" that the 

telemarketer is engaged in acts or practices that violate 16 C.F.R. § 
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the Rule. 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(b). Such conduct constitutes a deceptive telemarketing act or 

practice and a violation of the TSR. 

74. It is an abusive telemarketing act or practice and a violation of the TSR for any seller or 

telemarketer to cause billing information to be submitted for payment, directly or indirectly, 

without the express informed consent of the customer or donor. 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(a)(6). In 

order to establish the consumer's "express informed consent" in a telemarketing transaction 

that involves preacquired accOlmt information and a free-to-pay conversion feature, the 

seller or telemarketer must: "obtain from the customer, at a minimum, the last four (4) 

digits of the account number to be charged" and also "obtain from the customer his or her 

express agreement to be charged for the goods or services and to be charged using the 

account number" for which the last four digits were pu0rketing the a 45.802 -2.d967 0 Td
a 
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77. The NHS/PHS Defendants' practice as alleged in Paragraph 76 is a deceptive telemarketing 

practice that violates Section 310.3(a)(l)(ii) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(l)(ii). 

Count VII 
Misrepresenting Total Cost 

78. In numerous instances, in the course of telemarketing one or more purported discolmt health 

care and benefits programs, Defendants have misrepresented, directly or by implication, the 

total cost that will be charged to consumers who provide Defendants with their account 

information. 

79. Defendants' practice as alleged in Paragraph 78 is a deceptive telemarketing practice that 

violates Section 310.3(a)(2)(i) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(2)(i). 

Count VIII 
Misrepresenting Nature of Services 

800 In numerous instances, in the course of telemarketing one or more purported discolmt health 

care and benefits programs, Defendants have misrepresented, directly or by implication, 

material aspects of the performance, efficacy, nature, or central characteristics of the goods 

or services they sell, including that consumers who provide their financial account 

information to Defendants will thereby receive substantial government grants, tax refimds, 

or tax rebates. 

81. Defendants' practice as alleged in Paragraph 80 is a deceptive telemarketing practice that 

violates Section 310.3(a)(2)(iii) of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 31003(a)(2)(iii). 

19 
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.Count IX 
Misrepresenting Affiliation with Government 

82. In numerous instances, in the course of telemarketing one or more purported discount health 

care and benefits programs, Defendants have misrepresented, directly or by implication, that 

they are calling from, on behalf of, or are otherwise affiliated with one or more United 

States government entities. 

83. Defendants' 
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Count 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Wherefore, Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission, pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the 

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, and Section 6(b) of the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 6105(b), and the Court's own equitable powers, requests that' the Court: 

A. Award Plaintiff such preliminary injlllctive and ancillary relief as may be 

necessary to avert the likelihood of consumer injury during the pendency of this action and to 

preserve the possibility of effective final relief, including but not limited to, temporary and 

preliminary injunctions, an order freezing assets, immediate access, and the appointment of a 

receIver; 

B. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations th Td
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